REGULAR MEETING OF SOUTH EUCLID CITY COUNCIL

Council President Dennis Fiorelli called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Roll Call

Present: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. **Absent:** Councilman Joe Frank.

Amend Agenda to Include Resolution 48-18

Action: Motion to Amend Agenda, Moved by Council President Dennis Fiorelli, Seconded by Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The agenda has been amended.

Minutes of Meetings June 11, 2018; June 25, 2018

June 11, 2018

Action: Motion to Approve Minutes, **Moved by** Councilwoman Sara Continenza, **Seconded by** Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell.

Continenza, Russell

Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 5, No = 0, Abstain = 1).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Abstain: Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The minutes have been approved.

June 25, 2018

Action: Motion to Approve Minutes, **Moved by** Councilwoman Sara Continenza, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Vote: Motion passed (summary: Yes = 5, No = 0, Abstain = 1).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. Abstain: Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell. Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The minutes have been approved.

Report of Mayor

- Mayor Welo reported all directors are in attendance except Service Director Anderson.
- Economic Development Director Love requested consideration for Resolution 45-18 recommended for approval by the Finance Committee to allow the city to move forward with an RFQ for energy conservation projects in city facilities. Mr. Love reported on the upcoming Taste of Cedar Center and City Hall Open House events.
- Police Chief Nietert gave an update on the nuisance property on Glenridge
 where there are thousands of tires and that the criminal proceedings are moving
 forward and that the City has hired Liberty Tire who will begin the process of
 cleaning up the property this week. Mr. Nietert discussed legislation related to a
 moral claim and stated that the damage to the property was caused by an
 officer and that is why the moral claim was put forward.
- Engineer Blackley reported that most of the road resurfacing projects have been completed or nearing conclusion and that the waterline project on Whitehall and Westdale will commence this week.
- Mayor Welo reported that she received a letter from the Mayor of Shaker Heights thanking the City and Fire Department for their assistance with the fire at the Shaker Elementary School, and stated that this is an example why regional fire

Resolution 26-18

districts could work. The Mayor reported on the replacement of trees at the War Memorial, one is a Jesse Owens tree and the other a tree coming from Rhodes High School that are being donated by Mr. Lampher. The mayor reported on South Euclid's Mercury Theatre Company's production of "Caroline or Change" at Notre Dame College and invited residents to the City Hall Open House this Saturday.

Report of Law Director

No report

Public Hearings (Open Meeting) Related to Agenda Items - There were no comments.

Report of Committees

Zoning & Planning Committee

Councilman Russell reported that the committee met for a public hearing regarding Ordinance 11-18, a zoning text change allowing conditional uses for financial institutions. The committee also met to discuss Ord. 12-18 regarding Small Cell Regulation and Ordinance 01-17 regarding the Architectural Review Board's review of residential properties.

Safety Committee

Councilman Gelfand reported that the committee met regarding Ord. 13-18 & 14-18, which are companion ordinances creating the new rank of corporal in the South Euclid Police Department. Mr. Gelfand stated that the current situation creates an inconsistency in leadership and the legislation was requested by the police union and might save some money. Councilman Gelfand stated that Ordinance 14-18 fixes the salary for the corporal position and also closes a loophole in insurance to make sure that married couples that work for the city would not be able to double dip.

Committee of the Whole

Council President Fiorelli reported that the committee held its monthly meeting to review finances and that the June 30th General Fund balance is around \$2.4 million. Mr. Fiorelli reported that Fire Chief Doug Stefko gave an update on department grants.

Finance Committee

Introduced by Fiorelli

RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO PAY A MORAL CLAIM. THIRD READING.

Council President stated that the legislation needs to be amended to state that the Claim is in an amount of "the insurance deductible or an amount not to exceed" \$994.68.

Action: Motion to Amend Legislation, **Moved by** Council President Dennis Fiorelli, **Seconded by** Councilman Marty Gelfand.

The legislation has been amended.

- Councilwoman Gray stated that if we are going to pay her deductible why isn't the legislation based on the amount of the deductible and that until she provides us with the exact amount of her deductible, we should wait. Ms. Gray stated that the Law Director has stated that the city does not have a legal responsibility and she has not provided us with the information from her insurance company, so how can council move forward.
- Law Director Lograsso stated that she did give the city three estimates.
- Councilwoman Goodman stated that the City does want to pay out of pocket costs to make a person whole, but theres no verification that the claimant has paid for the repair or that any money has come out of her pocket.
- Councilman Russell asked what happens if the deductible exceeds the amount.
- Councilwoman Goodman asked what happens if she doesn't have the money to make the repairs and the legislation should say the city should say that the city will pay for repairs.
- Council Clerk Benjamin made a suggestion regarding who the moral pay would be paid to without her name and asked the Law Director to provide clarification.
- Councilman Gelfand offered language similar to Clerk Benjamin's suggestion with the removal of the name.

- Councilwoman Gray asked why don't we give the claimant \$994.68 and it is
 paid for and let it go? Why are we requesting more information if she submitted
 estimates.
- Councilman Gelfand stated that the city doesn't have to pay it, but will accept responsibility and pay the claim.
- Councilwoman Gray asked in previous moral claims who were the checks made out to and Finance Director Wendt stated that it was paid to the claimant.
- Councilwoman Gray stated that if we are responsible, we should give her the money and stop dragging our feet.
- Council President Fiorelli called a vote on the amendment.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell,

Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The motion to amend has been approved.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Council President Dennis Fiorelli, **Seconded by** Councilman Marty Gelfand.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Zoning & Planning Committee

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

AMENDING SECTION 732.02 "CONDITIONAL USES" OF CHAPTER 732 "CONDITIONAL USES IN COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS" OF TITLE THREE "COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS" OF PART SEVEN "PLANNING AND ZONING CODE" OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO. **THIRD READING**.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, **Seconded by** Councilman Marty Gelfand.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

CREATING CHAPTER 1335 "SMALL CELL FACILITIES AND WIRELESS SUPPORT STRUCTURES WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY" OF TITLE FIVE "OTHER BUILDING PROVISIONS" OF PART THIRTEEN "BUILDING CODE" OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. **THIRD READING.**

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Sara Continenza.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Safety Committee

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 13-18

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 131.05 "POLICE DEPARTMENT COMPOSITION AND BOND" OF CHAPTER 131, "DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY" OF PART ONE

Ordinance 12-18

Ordinance 11-18

"ADMINISTRATIVE CODE" OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. **SECOND READING.**

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilman Marty Gelfand, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 14-18

AMENDING SECTION 1 AND SECTION 11 OF ORDINANCE 21-16; FIXING THE SALARY RANGE, COMPENSATION AND RATES OF PAY FOR VARIOUS OFFICES, BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2017; TO CREATE THE POSITION OF CORPORAL WITHIN THE POLICE DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. SECOND READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilman Marty Gelfand, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Committee of the Whole

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 15-18

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH LOCAL 2319 AND OHIO COUNCIL 8 OF THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY & MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. THIRD READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilwoman Jane Goodman, **Seconded by** Councilman Marty Gelfand.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 16-18

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO WITH THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE FIGHTERS, LOCAL 1065, FOR ALL FULL-TIME FIRE FIGHTERS COVERED BY THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. THIRD READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, Moved by Councilman Marty Gelfand, Seconded by Councilwoman Jane Goodman.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 17-18

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO WITH THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, LOCAL LODGE NO. 80, FOR ALL FULL-TIME POLICE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. **SECOND READING.** Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilman Marty Gelfand, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Legislation Requested by the Administration

Introduced by Fiorelli

RESOLUTION

Resolution 45-18

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR AN ENERGY CONSERVATION PROGRAM FOR THE MUNICIPAL PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO IN ACCORDANCE WITH HOUSE BILL 420. FIRST READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilwoman Sara Continenza, **Seconded by** Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

Ordinance 18-18

Ordinance 19-18

Ordinance 20-18

AMENDING SECTION 303.08 "IMPOUNDING OR BOOTING OF VEHICLES; REDEMPTION" OF CHAPTER 303 "ENFORCEMENT, IMPOUNDING AND PENALTY" OF PART THREE "TRAFFIC CODE" OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO. **SECOND READING.**

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilwoman Jane Goodman, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Sara Continenza.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

ASSESSING UNPAID COSTS OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT (HIGH GRASS, WEEDS, ETC.) AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 521.14 (D), OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. FIRST READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Jane Goodman.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE

ASSESSING UNPAID COSTS OF SERVICE DEPARTMENT-NUISANCE ABATEMENT (YARD CLEAN-UP, BOARDING CHARGES, ETC.) AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 521.14 (D) OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. FIRST READING.

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilwoman Jane Goodman, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Ruth Gray.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

Ordinance 21-18

The legislation has been approved.

Introduced by Fiorelli

ORDINANCE ASSESSING ALL UNPAID COSTS OF FALSE ALARM -NUISANCE ABATEMENTS, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 531 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO, THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY COMMON PLEAS COURT AND THE OHIO REVISED CODE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. FIRST READING. Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, Moved by Councilman Marty Gelfand, Seconded by Councilwoman Ruth Gray. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6). Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. Absent: Councilman Joe Frank. The legislation has been approved. Introduced by Fiorelli Ordinance 22-18 ORDINANCE ASSESSING ALL UNPAID COSTS OF CRIMINAL NUISANCE ABATEMENTS, AS AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 531 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, OHIO, THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY COMMON PLEAS COURT AND THE OHIO REVISED CODE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. FIRST READING. Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, Moved by Councilman Marty Gelfand, Seconded by Councilwoman Ruth Gray. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6). Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. Absent: Councilman Joe Frank. The legislation has been approved. Introduced by Fiorelli Ordinance 23-18 ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 19-17, AMENDING SECTION 172.01 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID, TITLE NINE "MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX," BY INCREASING THE RATE OF MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX TO TWO AND ONE-HALF PERCENT (2.5%) PROVIDING FOR SUBMISSION OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF SOUTH EUCLID; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. FIRST READING. Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, Moved by Councilman Marty Gelfand, Seconded by Councilwoman Ruth Gray. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6). Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. Absent: Councilman Joe Frank. The legislation has been approved. Introduced by Fiorelli Resolution 46-18 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF UNAPPROPRIATED FUNDS IN THE FOLLOWING FUND: "GENERAL FUND-SERVICE DEPARTMENT-TRAFFIC LIGHT MAINTENANCE #101-6610-52378" IN ORDER TO MAKE REPAIRS TO THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT THE INTERSECTION OF WARRENSVILLE CENTER ROAD AND OAKWOOD COMMONS. FIRST READING. Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, Moved by Council President Dennis Fiorelli, Seconded by Councilman Marty Gelfand. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 6). Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli. Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The legislation has been approved.

- Councilwoman Goodman gave an update on new compliance standards for national pollution discharge permits and gave an update on Tree Commission efforts. Ms. Goodman stated that the Bexley Bash was terrific.
- Councilwoman Continenza asked neighbors to remember to keep their porch and side door lights on at night to deter criminal activity and discussed the many resources available to residents to help make neighborhoods better. Ms. Continenza thanked University Suburban and Mayor Welo for donating funds for the dunk tank at the upcoming Bexley Bash.
- Councilman Russell reported that because of the Shaker Heights fire at Fernway, he was in touch with Shaker Heights through his job and gave them information on churches in South Euclid that could possibly provide space for students if needed.
- Councilman Gelfand reported on the Verona Road Block Party held last Sunday and the great theatre being produced at Mercury Theatre Company. Mr. Gelfand reported on upcoming events including the City Hall Open House, Taste of Cedar Center and the "Marci's March" held every year by the Kornblut Family with funds going to support domestic violence victims and advocacy service organizations.
- Councilwoman Gray congratulated Mayor Welo, Dr. Kym Chambers and Director Benjamin for a superb Youth Initiative Program and that the program is a great exposure for youth. Ms. Gray congratulated Councilwoman Continenza for her work organizing the Bexley Bash and that the event has inspired her to have a community movie night at Quarry Park on September 7th. Ms. Gray gave an update on neighborhood meetings including Princeton Neighborhood Meet and Greet on August 9th and the Salisbury Road Garage Sale and Block Party.

Public Hearings (Open Meeting) Related to Open Business

- Doc Janning, 2092 Campus Road, stated that he has lived in South Euclid since 1981 and read a poem he wrote titles "Songs of the Multiverse"
- Dawn Ambrose, 4356 Adrian Road, stated her concern regarding a tree that came down during a storm that is an eyesore and is on a vacant lot that is also a concern with kids going back in the lot and congregating. Mayor Welo stated that the city will look into the issue.
- Laverne Davis, 4344 Adrian Road, also spoke regarding the tree and vacant lot and stated that the wooded area is a hazard. Ms. Davis inquired on when Adrian Road might be resurfaced. Mayor Welo responded that Adrian is rated one of the worst condition streets and the chances are good that the street will be resurfaced next year.
- Chuck Turner, 4549 Lilac Road, stated that he created a new sign that might have thrown the city for a curve. It says "No more tax, give Welo the Ax" because Mayor Welo condones and allows the police department and police chief to harass him and that false police reports have appeared on Cleveland.com about him. Mr. Turner stated that the city has some pretty trashy people and if the leaders think that you're going to pass an income tax increase without him gaining a little support from the voters, you are sadly mistaken.
- Cory Mohering, 1544 Holmden Road, stated that the city does a lot for the residents and offered his appreciation, including for grants that helped him rebuild his garage. Mr. Mohering stated that Councilwoman Continenza is assisting with a Holmden Road Garage Sale and they are planning to have a block party at the end of August. Mr. Mohering stated that the City has been good to him and his wide.
- Deborah Ambrose, 4356 Adrian Road, stated that she loves living in South Euclid and thanked the city for their efforts to take care of the issues on the vacant lot.

Adjourn

Gelfand COnt

Action: Motion to Approve Legislation, **Moved by** Councilman Gelfand, **Seconded by** Councilwoman Continenza.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (**summary:** Yes = 6).

Yes: Councilwoman Sara Continenza, Councilman Marty Gelfand, Councilwoman Jane Goodman, Councilwoman Ruth Gray, Council President Pro Tem Jason Russell, Council President Dennis Fiorelli.

Absent: Councilman Joe Frank.

The Meeting Adjourned at 9:36 pm

Attest:

Council President

Clerk of Council